
          

 

 

BLUE LAKE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2022 
1:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.bluelakecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
BLUE LAKE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Conference Room of the Offices of Lennar 

10461 Ben C. Pratt, Six Mile Cypress Parkway 
 Fort Myers, Florida 33966  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 28, 2022 

1:00 P.M. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………….......Page 1  

C. Consider Appointment to Board Vacancy 

D. Administer Oath of Office and Review Board Member Duties and Responsibilities 

E. Establish Quorum 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Approval of Minutes  

1. October 25, 2021 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………...Page 2 

I. Old Business 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget…...Page 6 

2. Request from Resident Delbert Powell – Fishery Improvements to Lake……………………..Page 14 

3. Consider Ratification of License Agreement for Installation of Improvements……………….Page 16 

K. Administrative Matters 

1. Engineer’s Report 

2. Manager’s Report 

 Presentation Request for Homeowners…………………………………………………….Page 21 

L. Board Members Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
OCTOBER 25, 2021 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The October 25, 2021, Regular Board Meeting of the Blue Lake Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 1:15 p.m. in the Conference Room of the Offices of Lennar located at 
10461 Ben C. Pratt, Six Mile Cypress Parkway, Fort Myers, Florida 33966. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Naples Daily News on October 13, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C.  CONSIDER ACCEPTANCE OF BOARD MEMBER RESIGNATION 
 
Mr. Edick stated that his resignation would be effective November 1, 2021.  Mr. Smith advised that, at 
this time, there was no name to submit to fill the vacancy. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Edwards, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously accepting Mr. 
Edick’s resignation from the Board, effective November 1, 2021. 
 
D.  ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Board Members constituted a quorum: 
 
Chairman Russell Smith Present 
Vice Chairman Tommy Dean  Absent 
Supervisor Barry Ernst  Present 
Supervisor Steve Edick (via phone) Present 
Supervisor Scott Edwards Present 

 
Also virtually present were the following Staff Members: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely  Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Wes Haber Kutak Rock LLP 
District Engineer Carl Barraco, Jr. Barraco and Associates, Inc. 

 
Also present were District residents Del Powell and Dave White. 
 
E.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
Ms. Meneely requested to add as #2 under New Business a discussion of the District Attorney’s new 
status.  She also requested the addition of a discussion on the utility easement under the Engineering 
Report.  There was a consensus of the Board to add both items. 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

F.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Powell requested a discussion on water quality and fishing on the lake.  Mr. Powell noted that the 
fish habitat were not growing and that he had asked the County to test the lake.  Mr. Haber stated, from 
the District’s perspective, only the functionality of the lake matters for the permit of the stormwater 
system.  Mr. Haber added that recreational fishing issues belong with the HOA.  Mr. Smith stated that 
there was a division of responsibility between the HOA and CDD.  Mr. White advised that he spoke with 
the HOA about the lakes and was working with them to increase the fish habitat.  Mr. Smith asked that 
the residents keep the CDD informed. 
 
Mr. Powell questioned the budget and the weeds growing near the fence.  Ms. Meneely stated that there 
was currently no money in the budget for this expense.  Mr. Smith asked staff to coordinate with Solitude 
on a proposal and to include it in next year’s budget. 
 
G.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  1.  June 28, 2021, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
The June 28, 2021, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ernst, seconded by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the June 28, 2021, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
H.  OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I.  NEW BUSINESS 
  1.  Consider Resolution No. 2021-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Amended Budget 
 

Resolution no. 2021-06 was presented, entitled: 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE BLUE 
LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 BUDGET 
(“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Edwards, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2021-06, as presented. 
 
  2.  Consider Transition to Kutak Rock 
 
Mr. Haber went over the specifics of the transfer of HGS staff to Kutak Rock. He indicated that the 
Board had the choice to remain with him and have records transferred to Kutak Rock or to go out for 
new counsel. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Edwards, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously to transfer the 
records to Kutak Rock and authorizing the signing of the transition letter. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  1.  Engineer’s Report – Consider Use of Easement 
 
Mr. Haber stated that a letter of no objection was received from Lennar requesting the District’s 
permission to utilize the drainage easements for pool equipment pads on both sides of the lot located at 
14044 Blue Lake Circle. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ernst, seconded by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously approving the 
letter of no objection, as presented. 
 
Mr. Haber continued that the license agreement had already been signed and he was requesting that the 
Board ratify that agreement.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously ratifying the license 
agreement, as presented.   
 
Mr. Barraco advised that the engineering certificate for the flow ways had been submitted to the County 
who had asked for additional information.  He stated the information had been sent, but he has not yet 
heard back.  He continued that he was working on the bill of sale for the utilities and the District will 
need to accept ownership.  He added that he would like to continue the process.  Upon discussion, a 
motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously authorizing the 
Chairman to sign the conveyance documents, when necessary. 
 
 2. Manager’s Update 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the upcoming meeting schedule for November 22, 2021, December 27, 2021, 
and January 24, 2022.  There was a consensus of the Board to cancel those meetings after inquiries are 
sent to be sure there are no pressing issues. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Ernst, seconded 
by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 1:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary     Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE BLUE 
LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING THE 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023, AND SETTING A 
PUBLIC HEARING THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Blue Lake Community Development District (the “District”) was 
recently established by the Board of County Commissioners of Lee County, Florida effective 
August 22, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors of the Blue Lake Community Development District (the “Board”) the proposed 
operating budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has considered the proposed budget and desires to set the 
required public hearing thereon.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT:  

 
SECTION 1. The operating budget proposed by the District Manager for Fiscal Year 

2022/2023 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the basis for conducting a public 
hearing to adopt said budget.  
 

SECTION 2. The public hearing on the approved budget is hereby declared and set for 
the following date, hour and location:  
 
  DATE:   June 27, 2022      
  HOUR:   1:00 p.m.     
  LOCATION: Conference Room of the Offices of Lennar  
    10481 Six Mile Cypress Parkway   

Fort Myers, Florida 33966    
 
 

SECTION 3. The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the proposed 
budget to Lee County at least sixty (60) days prior to the hearing set above.  
 

SECTION 4. In accordance with Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District’s 
Secretary is further directed to post the approved budget on the District's website at least two (2) 
days before the budget hearing date as set forth in Section 2. If the District does not have its own 
website, the District’s Secretary is directed to transmit the approved budget to the manager or 
administrator of Lee County for posting on its websites.  
 

SECTION 5. Notice of this public hearing shall be published in the manner prescribed in 
Florida law.  

Page 6



2 
 

 
SECTION 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of March, 2022.  
 

ATTEST:      BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY  
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget 

Page 7



  Blue Lake
 Community Development District

     Proposed Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2022/2023

      October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



"As part of the fishery improvement/reset for the large recreational lake, the fishery expert identified that we have too 
many medium sized large mouth bass and other predatory fish. In preparation for creating a more balanced eco system 
(food chain), he recommended harvesting out all large mouth bass under 15” and the other predatory fish and to, later this 
spring, stock shad (food source for the beginning of the food chain). This, along with the fish habitat and promotion of 
catch and release, should start to bolster the size, health and quantity of the large mouth bass over the next few years". 

Action Items/Discussion:
Harvest all Largemouth Bass less than 15 inches. Harvest all other predator species (if any are in the lake). 

Harvest all non native fish (such as pleco catfish). Harvest all adult tilapia (if present). Tilapia less than 5 
inches can stay in the lake.

Track angler creel data. Have key fisherman track catch rates, harvest rates, size class (round down to the 
nearest inch), date, key observations/notable fish (if any), etc.

Continue monitoring water quality. Use a lab that can detect total and free (ortho) phosphate within the 
lower detection range (i.e. less than 50 ppb).The current lab is not testing a low enough range. Monitor the 
following parameters: Free and total phosphorus, Nitrate, Nitrite, Ammonia, Total nitrogen, pH, chlorophyll 
A, DO and temperature. Quarterly testing would be ideal to start, but the actual parameters and frequency 
will depend on budget. Have a volunteer check the secchi reading every 1 4 weeks as well as color of the wa-
ter (via visual observation (green, olive green, olive brown, brown, clear, stained/tannic).

Stock Threadfin Shad. Shad should overwinter well. As a result they should not need to be stocked regular-
ly in the future. Stock a minimum of 400 pounds of shad. Ideally more should be stocked based on the size of 
the lake. When stocking low numbers it is possible that these shad will need to be stocked more than once be-
fore their population establishes. Harvesting intermediate size bass prior to stocking will be critical to im-
proving the odds of success. The cost per 400 pounds of shad delivered is $20,720.

Electrofish the lake one time per year and provide monthly data review and consulting. $7,700 annually.
Improve the fish cover by installing trees, or by installing artificial fish cover. If using artificial cover, 

MossBack makes the best product available. This task of adding fish cover is significant and will tie up a 
great deal of resources. To best stretch the available budget, volunteers should be utilized to assemble and 
deploy the cover. Talking with Dave White, he seems to have access to a boat and volunteers. The materials 
needed include trees (natural cover) and/or MossBack (artificial cover), cinder blocks (weights) and rope. 
The lake will require a great deal of cover. This cover should be in both shallow and deep water. Completing 
the project will take years. The exact amount of time will depend on the available budget and the available 
cover material.

Beneficial vegetation should be encouraged around the lake in areas that it will grow. Species such as pond-
weed, lily pads as well as emergent species such as pickerelweed should be considered. The lake drops off 
quickly around the shoreline, which leaves minimal surface acres for most species of vegetation to grow. Ad-
ditionally this shallow water area appeared to be rocky and less desirable for plant growth. Since the lake 
drops off quick and it is a rocky substrate from what I observed, it is possible that pants can be established 
while having minimal impacts on the water uses. If so, it would be ideal if the community could develop a 
tolerance for submersed aquatic vegetation. In order to get species such a water lily's to grow, they may re-
quire large pots with better quality topsoil.

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



From: Diane Russell <DRussell@theiconteam.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2022 4:19 PM 
To: Kathleen Dailey <kdailey@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: Blue Lake District 
 
Good afternoon Kathleen, 
 
Today, Chuck Adams of WildBlue CDD gave a presentation to the WildBlue owners that was very 
informative.   At the request of several VistaBlue residents, is it possible for you to the same for the Blue 
Lake District?  We could have an informal setting some weekday morning at the WildBlue pool.  
 
Please let me know if you are available anytime in the near future. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Diane Russell 
Community Association Manager 

 

 
 

 

ICON Management  

11691 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 203  

Fort Myers, FL 33913 

239.561.1444 (office)  

DRussell@theiconteam.com 

Company Brochure » 

 

    

   

 

Page 21


	Blue Lake Community Development District - March 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	October 25, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget
	Request from Resident Delbert Powell – Fishery Improvements to Lake
	Consider Ratification of License Agreement for Installation of Improvements
	Presentation Request for Homeowners




